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SANTA FE COUNTY 

RFP NO. 2019-0016-CMO/BT 

DESIGN BUILD PROJECT DELIVERY SERVICES 

SANTA FE COUNTY WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY (SFCWRF) 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 5 

 

Dear Proponents,  

 

This addendum is issued to reflect the following immediately.  It shall be the responsibility of 

interested Offerors to adhere to any changes or revisions to the RFP as identified in this 

Addendum No. 5.  This documentation shall become permanent and made part of the 

departmental files. 

 

 

Pursuant to IV. Evaluation Process, Section B. Phase II Documents, Subsections 1 – 7 of the 

RFP, please read and understand the following Phase II Submittal requirements: 

 

Section 1: 

Design-Build (D-B) Teams will submit two packets.  Volume I and Volume II packets.  Volume I 

will be specific to responses to the criteria factors listed in Section B.1 Phase II Evaluation 

Criteria.  Volume II submittal packet is in response to Cost and Schedule criteria factor.  Volume 

II will not count against the Volume page limit.   

The scores from the Phase I response to Project Staffing and Past Performance will carry over to 

Phase II criteria, unless conditions changed.  If conditions remain the same, the D-B Team must 

provide a response stating conditions have remained.  

A Transmittal or Submittal letter is not required for Phase II Submittal. 

The Campaign Contribution Disclosure form is not required for Phase II Submittal. 

Cost proposals will include established wage rates, mark-up for profit, overhead, general 

conditions, design and related costs regarding the Contractors direct construction costs, including 

those costs associated with any subcontractor’s or supplier’s direct labor, equipment, and/or 

material costs. 

All communication during Phase II will remain directed to the County Purchasing Office. 

Certificates of Insurance must meet requirements of liability and professional liability (Errors and 

Omissions) as outlined in the RFP from both the General Contractor and Engineer.              
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Section 2: Preliminary Engineering Report is the detailed program document being utilized for 

this procurement. 

 

Section 3: Staging area site map and specific requirements for Contractor’s field office, Project 

Manager’s field office and other logistics/staging requirements.   

 

RESPONSE – The Contractor will determine the most suitable location for their field office. 

There are no restrictions on the use of the existing site. The Contractor will establish the location 

of their project office based on the proposed Water Reclamation Facility Site Layout, construction 

material storage areas and required access, access for County Utilities Personnel to the current 

Wastewater Treatment Facility (i.e. lagoons, irrigation system, tail water intake structure, etc.) 

means and methods for construction of the new facility. 

 

Section 4: General requirements for the Project including the requirements for working in and 

around the project, specific requirements for project signage, and specific requirements for 

interfacing with the County and Using Agency staff. 

 

RESPONSE – The only requirements for working in or around the project are those established 

by the Department of Corrections. It is my understanding that the work hours are Monday through 

Friday between 7:00 am and 6:00 pm. Holidays are not included in the work schedule. There are 

no requirements for project signage other than what is required by the New Mexico Department of 

Labor regarding posting of information. The Contractor will interface directly with the Designated 

County Project Manager (or Owners Representative) and that individual will be responsible to the 

County Project Team for maintaining lines of communication, providing project administration 

and documenting the project history. In this case the Using Agency Staff would be the County 

Public Works Department Director and his designated staff. 

 

Section 5: Outline of specifications to help guide the Offeror’s with materials selections and 

setting standards of quality. 

 

RESPONSE – The specifications will have to be developed by the Contractor for approval by the 

Project Team. The proposed materials will also have to be approved through a material submittal 

review process. The standards of quality will be established through the Contractors Quality 

Control Process. 

 

Section 6: The Bid/Proposal Form for Volume II packet submittal is attached.  The proposal will 

include lump sum amount including design and construction, excluding NMGRT.  Also included 

in cost is all percentage of mark-up for profit, overhead, general conditions, design and related 

costs.   

In addition, the proposal shall include the project schedule, including the start and completion 

dates for all major activities and phased work, to include design, design reviews and approvals, 

permits and other agency reviews and approvals, construction by major activity, punch list and 

completion. 

 

Section 7: All Owner provided information has been provided through the Preliminary 

Engineering Report and documents via flash drive format provided to each D-B Team on 9/12/18.  
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DESIGN SOLUTION PRESENTATIONS 

        Thursday, October 18, 2018  

                Projects Conference Room  

                901 W. Alameda Suite 20-C, Santa Fe, NM 

 

                9:00AM to 10:15AM       RMCI/Molzen Corbin 

 

                10:30AM to 11:45AM    Integrated Water/SMA 

 

                Lunch 

 

                1:00PM to 2:15PM         HDR 

 

                2:30PM– 4:00PM           Committee deliberations and selection  

 

 

Attachment A:  Price Proposal/Project Cost Sheet 

Attachment B: DBIA Change Order form 

Attachment C: Water Reclamation Facility Map of Property Boundaries 

Attachment D: Site Visit September 17, 2018 Sign in Sheet 

Attachment E: Sample Report 

 

 

Question No. 1:     We are requesting the bid date be moved 2 weeks.  Typically for a treatment 

plant we get 5 weeks to bid the project and that is with owner supplied bid 

docs.  This project we have to develop plans and specs to a degree that it can 

be bid.  Also, we have not received the Phase II SOW yet.  

 

Answer No. 1:  The deadline to submit proposals has been extended.  Please refer to 

Addendum 4. 

 

Question No. 2:  Are covers required for the process basins?  Airborne debris such as  

tumbleweeds will get into the basins and clog the membranes.  Please clarify 

 

Answer No. 2:  Yes, covers will be required. 

 

Question No. 3: Will the future capacity be 1 or 2 MGD?  Please clarify. 

   

Answer No. 3:  The initial construction is based on 0.5 MGD with the intent of having the 

capability to be expandable in increments up to 2 MGD, within the limits of 

the project budget.   

 

Question No. 4:  Does the maximum price of $7.75 million include NMGRT?  There is 

contradictory language in phase 1.  Please clarify.  

 

Answer No. 4:  The project budget is $7.75 million, exclusive of NMGRT.   

 



102 Grant Avenue · P.O. Box 276 · Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-0276 · 505-986-6200 · FAX: 505-995-2740   
www.santafecountynm.gov 

Question No. 5: Permit limits – Is the County willing to enter discussions with NMED and 

EPA to try to get the anticipated Tier 2 limits changed from the current 

anticipated requirements?  The conversations would be to identify and 

understand the statement of basis surrounding the instreams water quality 

standards, and the assumptions being made that are driving these proposed 

limits.  A limit of 1 mg/l for phosphorus is not unreasonable but to meet a 

limit of 3 mg/l for total nitrogen seems excessively strict and the plants 

meeting this limit typically have five stages.  In addition, carbon has to be 

added which can be very expensive and difficult to do.  These do not appear 

in the HDR report or cost breakdown.  

 

Answer No. 5: The existing facility has an established Effluent disposal method with NMED 

to discharging onto an Irrigation field. With the expected higher quality 

Effluent discharge this will allow larger volumes of effluent to be disbursed 

onto the   irrigation field, if conditions dictate.    

 

Question No. 6: How closely must the design solution conform to the HDR PER Proposed 

Project?  We have identified potential cost saving measures and alternatives 

that do not necessarily align all components with the PER.  

 

Answer No. 6: The Engineering Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) are concept 

recommendations to provide performance standards for the design solution.   

The County will consider any cost savings design or measures that will meet 

the performance standards described in the RFP and PER. 

 

Question No. 7: Plant sizing – design and construction of a WWTP capable of expanding 

from 0.5 MGD to 1.0 MGD is significantly different than expansion from 0.5 

MGD to 2.0 MGD as the original plant must be designed to allow the 

expansion to happen economically.  Will the County clarify a final buildout 

of the plant for 1.0 MGD or 2.0 MGD?  

 

Answer No. 7: The initial build out for this system is 0.5 MGD, with the capability of 

expansion up to 2.0 MGD. The Design-Build Team is to propose a design 

solution that will maximize expansion capabilities of the plant.  

 

Question No. 8: Budget – the MACC does not align with the cost of the proposed project in 

the PER.  Additionally, we don’t agree with the design completeness and 

estimated costs of the proposed project budget in the PER for the scope of the 

project described in the RFQ.  Will the County consider or be identifying 

additional funding for the project if the complete scope of work cannot be 

provided for the MACC?  

 

Answer No. 8: The budget for this project is $7.7M.  The County expects design solutions 

that meet that project budget. It is the discretion of each Offeror to determine 

whether or not to submit a design solution for the designated budget. 
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Question No. 9: Is the County willing to extend the proposal submittal deadline?  We are 

concerned   that there is information missing from the PER and RFQ that is 

required to formulate a complete design and offer a competitive price.  

 

Answer No. 9:  Please refer to Addendum No. 4 the deadline has been extended.  

 

Question No. 10: What is the page limit for the submittal?  Will the County be expecting 

submittal of design drawings that correlate to the cost proposal within that 

page limit?   

 

Answer No. 10: The page limit is 25 pages and pertains specifically to the responses to the 

criteria factors.  The design drawings associated with the design solution 

being proposed should also be included in the Cost Proposal and Schedule 

volume, as well as part of the response to Criteria Factor No. 3, “Quality of 

Design Solution, including technical submittals”.  Cost and schedule 

submittals will not count against the page limit. 

 

Question No. 11: What utilities currently exist at the facility?  Can you provide a map with 

electric, gas, potable water and data/communications infrastructure? 

 

Answer No. 11: All Site Drawings have been provided.  The awarded D-B Team will be 

responsible to locate, identify, eliminate, and remove all utilities, process 

piping, and structures that are within the project site location hindering the 

completion of this project.  

 

Question No. 12: Are there any requirements and/or limits for the amount of work 

subcontracted for the contract?  Please define how much the General 

Contractor must self-perform for the contract, and what self-performing 

consists of for this project.   

 

Answer No. 12: The project does not specify limits on the amount of work performed by 

subcontracts.  That is determined by the GC. 

 

Question No. 13: Is a bidder allowed to change the project team for the Phase 2 submittal, i.e. 

replace or add members of the proposed team?  If we have new/additional 

information regarding Project Staffing and Past Record of Performance to 

submit for the Phase 2 proposal, will the page limit be inclusive of the new 

information? 

 

Answer No. 13: Yes, and yes. 

 

Question No. 14: Can the County provide any geotechnical information for the site from past 

projects, e.g. construction of the corrections facility or the existing 

wastewater treatment lagoon or headworks? 

 

Answer No. 14: The County has provided all information available. 
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Question No. 15: Please clarify the points described to be awarded during/after the Interviews: 

will these be in addition to, or in place of, the points awarded for the Phase 2 

proposal evaluation categories?   

 

Answer No. 15: As stated in the RFP, only the points earned in Phase I evaluation for Project 

Staffing and Past Record of Performance will carry over to Phase II, unless 

conditions changed for these two factors and are modified.    

 

 

 

Question No. 16: a.  Please clarify how Cost will be scored and when it will be taken into 

consideration if Schedule is to be addressed during the Interviews but Cost 

will not be part of the presentation?  

 b.  Additionally, how will the completeness of scope of work be scored 

c.  We anticipate that the proposals will be similar in price but the scope of 

work will vary based on what contractors will be able to deliver within the 

MACC. 

 

Answer No. 16: a.  The lowest cost will receive a total of 300 points.  The next lowest cost 

will receive a percentage of the 300 points using the formula as described:  

Lowest Cost/next higher price = %...300 pts X % = pts for next higher cost. 

b. The committee will evaluate the completeness of the scope together with 

the design solution. 

c.   The committee will obviously take this into account, but the formula 

above with be used for assigning the points.  This is a qualification-based 

selection for best value.   The County will evaluate the proposals based on the 

best value that can be obtained within the available funding and most 

reasonable schedule. 

 

Question No. 17: a. Will life cycle cost or O&M costs be part of any scoring criteria?  

b. What warranty period does the County want incorporated into the project 

for equipment and facilities? 

 

  Answer No. 17: a.  The cost will be scored as described above and in the RFP. 

b.  The Design-Build should provide a warranty period in their proposal.  

Basic performance standards should be met. 

 

Question No. 18: Please provide a summary of the sample analysis of plant influent.  We 

would like to see BOD, COD, TSS, VSS, pH, ammonia-N, TKN, total P, 

ortho P, and a complete water chemistry with TDS, calcium carbonate, 

sulfates, chlorides, sodium, etc.   We have concerns about the brewery and 

need the water quality to properly design the process, as well as membrane 

flux, basin sizing, etc.   

 

Answer No. 18: Please refer to Addendum No. 4 regarding the sample reports. 
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Question No. 19: Please clarify how the effluent will be discharged and to which receiving 

stream, so that we may incorporate design of an outfall: we have not been 

able to identify a receiving stream for the effluent. 

 

Answer No. 19: Currently all effluent is being discharged onto the irrigation field.  The 

desired point of compliance would be where the effluent enters the storage 

ponds.  Giving the current conditions, no other compliance points have been 

identified.   

 

Question No. 20: The RFP requires studies and reports as part of project commissioning.  Has 

an Environmental Assessment been completed for the site for the project and 

for the future NPDES permit?  If any environmental reports have been 

completed, will the County provide them for our use? 

 

Answer No. 20: N/A 

 

Question No. 21: Please advise if the contract for the project will be Lump Sum, Cost Plus, 

GMP with a fixed fee, or other.  The DBIA contract in the RFP does not 

state. 

 

Answer No. 21: The cost proposal for this project should be submitted as a lump sum. Please 

refer to the Price Proposal/Project Cost Sheet Attachment A attached hereto. 

 

Question No. 22: The current structure of the project in which the contractor is to provide a 

price for engineering and construction of a wwtp in Phase 2 of the proposal 

does not allow for a collaborative approach to the project in which feedback 

from various stakeholders (NMED or Santa Fe County, etc) is taken into 

account during the engineering phase of the project to enhance the project.  

Would the County be willing to consider a progressive design/build approach 

with 30%, 60%, 90% milestones with a GMP developed after 60% to 90% 

design development? 

 

    Answer No. 22: That is exactly what the County has stated in the RFP.  After award, the 

County will work with the selected D-B Team through 10%, 60% and 90%. 

  

Question No. 23: Is there a self-performance requirement in which the contractor selected must 

perform a percentage of the construction of the project?    

 

Answer No. 23: There is not a self-performance requirement for this project; however, this is 

NOT a solicitation for a CM at Risk.    

 

Question No. 24: Is it acceptable for the contractor selected to subcontract the majority of the 

project construction?   

 

Answer No. 24: Please refer to Question No. 23.  The Design-Build Team may provide a 

proposal that is most achieves the intent of the contract. 

 

Question No. 25: Does the County have a technical specification for the plant? 



102 Grant Avenue · P.O. Box 276 · Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-0276 · 505-986-6200 · FAX: 505-995-2740   
www.santafecountynm.gov 

 

Answer No. 25: No, specification is based on water quality. No. Only what is referenced in 

the PER and RFP documents. 

 

Question No. 26: Does HDR have any advantages over other contractors since they were 

selected to provide the PER?   

 

Answer No. 26: It is the determination of the County Procurement Manager that all 

information from the PER be distributed to all interested Offerors to the RFP.  

For this reason, HDR does not have an unfair advantage over other Offerors.   

 

Question No. 26: How will the County handle changes to the plant or contract cost due to 

changes in the basis of design or other changes if they arise during the 

engineering phase due to new information coming to light or unforeseen 

NMED requirements?    

 

Answer No. 26: Any change orders will be addressed using the DBIA Contract Change Order 

Form. 

 

Question No. 27: Are there additional contract documents that the County intends to use with 

the project such as special conditions or other County contract documents?  

 

Answer No. 27: The County will be using all DBIA contract forms as provided in the RFP. 

  

Question No. 28: Please confirm that it is the intent of the County for Contractors to provide a 

total cost for the wwtp in the phase 2 submittal prior to completion of 

significant engineering and design tasks.   

 

Answer No. 28: The County has provided sufficient information for Contractors to propose a 

design solution to include cost, for this phase of the design-build project 

delivery method of procurement.   

 
Question No. 29: What is the page limit for the Phase II proposal? 

 

Answer No. 29:        Please refer to Question and Answer No. 10. 

 

 

Question No. 30: Are any pages not included in the page count? 

 

    Answer No. 30:       Please refer to the RFP.  The page count only pertains to the responses to the 

Phase II criteria factors, with the exception of the cost and schedule 

submittal. 

 

Please add this Addendum No. 5 to the original proposal documents and refer to proposal 

documents, hereto as such.  This and all subsequent addenda will become part of any resulting 

contract documents and have effects as if original issued.  All other unaffected sections will have 

their original interpretation and remain in full force and effect.  Responders are reminded that any 
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questions or need for clarification must be addressed to Bill Taylor, Procurement Manager at 

wtaylor@santafecountynm.gov.   

mailto:wtaylor@santafecountynm.gov


RFP No. 2019-0016-CMO/BT 

PRICE PROPOSAL AND SECURITY FORM 

Project Cost / Product Description 
Design-Build Proposal 

Scope of Work for the Project: 
Utilizing a Design-Build project delivery method, the County is authorized to plan, design, and construct 

the new Santa Fe County Water Reclamation facility.    

The project consists of the design and construction of a new 0.50 MGD Wastewater Treatment Facility 

to replace the existing QWWTP facility.  The existing QWWTF will remain in operation during 

construction and commissioning of the new facility.  The proposed project contemplates the 

construction of one Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) train with a process capacity up to 0.50 MGD with a 

modular design for expansion to either 1.0 MGD or 2.0 MGD ultimate capacity in the future.    

1.01 To: 

Santa Fe County 

1.02 For: 

- Project Name: Santa Fe County Water Reclamation Facility Project 

- Project Number: RFP No. 2019-0016-CMO/BT 

- Location: Hwy 14, State Penitentiary in Santa Fe, New Mexico 

-

1.03 Date: 

1.04 Submitted By:  [Offeror’s Full Name and address] 

1.05 Offer: 

The Design-Build Team of ____________ is pleased to submit a Design Build proposal for the 

necessary design and construction required to complete the Santa Fe County Water Reclamation 

Facility Project, RFP No. 2019-0016-CMO/BT as offered by Santa Fe County. 

The undersigned herby offer to enter into a Contract to perform the Work for the Sum of: 

____________________________________________(written word)$_______________, 

exclusive of NMGRT 

Note: Contingency, if applicable: _____% or Amount$____________ 

Note: Alternate Pricing:  

Attachment A
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ALTERNATES: Amount Accepted 

1. Alternate 50 KW Solar Array ADD 

2. Alternate electrical feed to new facility ADD 

Total with Accepted Alternates: 

1.06 Acceptance: 

A. This offer shall be open to acceptance and is irrevocable for sixty (60) days from the bid

closing date.

1.07 Contract Time: 

If this Offer is accepted, we will complete the Work in ____ calendar days from Notice to Proceed 

and receipt of Executed Contract. 

1.08 Addenda 

A. The following Addenda have been received.  The modifications to the Bid Documents noted

below have been considered and all costs are included in the Bid Sum.

1. Addendum No. __________ Dated __________

2. Addendum No. __________ Dated __________

3. Addendum No. __________ Dated __________

4. Addendum No. __________ Dated __________

5. Addendum No. __________ Dated __________

6. Addendum No. __________ Dated __________

1.09 Bid Form Supplements: 

The following Supplements are attached to this Bid Form and are considered an integral part of 

this Bid Proposal: 

1. The Design-Build Team of _______________________________RFP Responses including

Phase II and proposed cost and schedule consisting of Volume 1 & 2.

General Conditions 
The project includes all utility and infrastructure requirements including but not limited to electrical, 

gas, telecommunications, SCADA, sanitary sewer, potable water, permitting, and fire 

protection/suppression.   

Specialty elements and considerations for the project shall include but are not limited to the following: 

• Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) Basin and Equipment.

• Future modular expandability in 0.50 MGD increments.
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• New Wastewater Lift Station.

• New Fine Screen and Grit Building.

• New Operations Building with blowers, RAS pumps, Sodium Hypochlorite/Citric Acid

Equipment, and Disinfection.

• Biological Basins and Aeration Equipment.

• Aerobic Digesters.

• Reuse storage and pumping.

• Concrete sludge drying beds.

• Maintain existing QWWTF operations during construction and commissioning.

• Decommissioning of existing facility.

• Meet all applicable NPDES Tier 2 permit requirements, including:

o Effluent quality less than 3.0 mg N/L total nitrogen.

o Effluent quality less than 1.0 mg P/L total phosphorus.

• Discharge from the WWTF by effluent reuse shall meet GWQB and NMED Class 1A permit

requirements.

1. Including supervision, quality control, temporary facilities, temporary utilities, temporary

protection, construction equipment, safety, SWPPP, daily cleanup and final clean,

dumpsters, surveying, building lay-out, start up and close out costs, CID permit and

plan check fees, site and building testing, general liability and builder’s risk insurance,

performance and payment bond

2. Engineering design fees

The Offeror understands that the contract will be awarded in accordance with the provisions of the RFP 

and that the Owner reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and to waive any formalities in the 

proposals. 

The Offeror agrees that this price will be good and may not be withdrawn for a period of sixty (60) 

calendar days after the scheduled closing time for receiving proposals. 

Upon receipt of written notice of acceptance of this Price, Offeror will execute the final contract within 

seven calendar days. 
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Respectfully Submitted, 

By: Date: 

(Authorized Signature) 

By: 

(Same Name, Printed or Typed) 

Title: 

Company: 

Address:  Phone: 

Zip:  

Fax:   Email:  

(Affix Corporate Seal if proposal by Corporation): 

: 
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September 14, 2018

Santa Fe County
Leroy Alvarado

Dear Leroy Alvarado:

RE: Santa Fe County WRF Sampling OrderNo.: 1808B81

FAX (505) 992-3028
TEL: (505) 490-0038

424 NM Highway 599
Santa Fe, NM 87507

Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory
4901 Hawkins NE

Albuquerque, NM 87109

Website: www.hallenvironmental.com
TEL: 505-345-3975 FAX: 505-345-4107

Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory received 2 sample(s) on 8/20/2018 for the 
analyses presented in the following report.

Andy Freeman

These were analyzed according to EPA procedures or equivalent. To access our accredited 
tests please go to www.hallenvironmental.com or the state specific web sites.  In order to 
properly interpret your results, it is imperative that you review this report in its entirety.  
See the sample checklist and/or the Chain of Custody for information regarding the 
sample receipt temperature and preservation.  Data qualifiers or a narrative will be 
provided if the sample analysis or analytical quality control parameters require a flag.  
When necessary, data qualifiers are provided on both the sample analysis report and the 
QC summary report, both sections should be reviewed.  All samples are reported, as 
received, unless otherwise indicated.  Lab measurement of analytes considered field 
parameters that require analysis within 15 minutes of sampling such as pH and residual 
chlorine are qualified as being analyzed outside of the recommended holding time.

Please don't hesitate to contact HEAL for any additional information or clarifications.

ADHS Cert #AZ0682  --  NMED-DWB Cert #NM9425  --  NMED-Micro Cert #NM0901

Sincerely,

Laboratory Manager
4901 Hawkins NE
Albuquerque, NM 87109

Attachment E

http://www.hallenvironmental.com
http://www.hallenvironmental.com


Project: Santa Fe County WRF Sampling
Client Sample ID: PNM Quill Influent 

Collection Date: 8/20/2018 9:40:00 AM
Matrix: AQUEOUS

CLIENT: Santa Fe County

Lab ID: 1808B81-001

Date Reported: 9/14/2018

Analytical Report
Lab Order 1808B81

Analyses Result Qual Units Date AnalyzedDFPQL

Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory, Inc.

Received Date: 8/20/2018 11:16:00 AM

EPA METHOD 300.0: ANIONS Analyst: MRA

Fluoride 8/21/2018 1:24:40 AM0.50 mg/L 5ND

Nitrogen, Nitrate (As N) 8/21/2018 1:24:40 AM0.50 mg/L 5ND

Sulfate 8/21/2018 1:24:40 AM2.5 mg/L 560

EPA METHOD 200.7: METALS Analyst: pmf

Aluminum * 8/28/2018 5:12:34 PM0.020 mg/L 10.22

Barium 8/28/2018 5:12:34 PM0.0020 mg/L 10.083

Cadmium 8/28/2018 5:12:34 PM0.0020 mg/L 1ND

Chromium 8/28/2018 5:12:34 PM0.0060 mg/L 1ND

Cobalt 8/28/2018 5:12:34 PM0.0060 mg/L 1ND

Iron * 8/28/2018 5:12:34 PM0.020 mg/L 10.38

Manganese 8/28/2018 5:12:34 PM0.0020 mg/L 10.020

Molybdenum 8/28/2018 5:12:34 PM0.0080 mg/L 1ND

Nickel 8/28/2018 5:12:34 PM0.010 mg/L 1ND

Silver 8/28/2018 5:12:34 PM0.0050 mg/L 1ND

Zinc 8/28/2018 5:12:34 PM0.010 mg/L 10.11

EPA 200.8: METALS Analyst: ELS

Arsenic 8/24/2018 7:56:05 AM0.0010 mg/L 1ND

Copper 8/24/2018 7:56:05 AM0.0010 mg/L 10.028

Lead 8/24/2018 7:56:05 AM0.00050 mg/L 10.00063

Selenium 8/24/2018 7:56:05 AM0.0010 mg/L 1ND

Uranium 8/28/2018 8:29:41 AM0.00050 mg/L 10.0011

EPA METHOD 245.1: MERCURY Analyst: rde

Mercury 9/5/2018 5:30:37 PM0.00020 mg/L 1ND

SM5210B: BOD Analyst: SMS

Biochemical Oxygen Demand 8/27/2018 1:48:00 PM2.0 mg/L 1180

SM 4500 NORG C: TKN Analyst: CJS

Nitrogen, Kjeldahl, Total D 8/24/2018 2:16:00 PM2.0 mg/L 139

SM 2540D: TSS Analyst: KS

Suspended Solids D 8/22/2018 1:08:00 PM8.0 mg/L 1150

Qualifiers:   

Page 1 of 10

Refer to the QC Summary report and sample login checklist for flagged QC data and preservation information.

* Value exceeds Maximum Contaminant Level. B Analyte detected in the associated Method Blank
D Sample Diluted Due to Matrix E Value above quantitation range
H Holding times for preparation or analysis exceeded J Analyte detected below quantitation limits

ND Not Detected at the Reporting Limit P Sample pH Not In Range
PQL Practical Quanitative Limit RL Reporting Detection Limit

S % Recovery outside of range due to dilution or matrix W Sample container temperature is out of limit as specified 



Project: Santa Fe County WRF Sampling
Client Sample ID: Thornberg Lift Station

Collection Date: 8/20/2018 9:00:00 AM
Matrix: AQUEOUS

CLIENT: Santa Fe County

Lab ID: 1808B81-002

Date Reported: 9/14/2018

Analytical Report
Lab Order 1808B81

Analyses Result Qual Units Date AnalyzedDFPQL

Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory, Inc.

Received Date: 8/20/2018 11:16:00 AM

EPA METHOD 300.0: ANIONS Analyst: MRA

Fluoride 8/21/2018 1:49:30 AM0.50 mg/L 5ND

Nitrogen, Nitrate (As N) 8/21/2018 1:49:30 AM0.50 mg/L 5ND

Sulfate 8/21/2018 1:49:30 AM2.5 mg/L 570

EPA METHOD 200.7: METALS Analyst: pmf

Aluminum * 8/28/2018 5:14:51 PM0.020 mg/L 10.30

Barium 8/28/2018 5:14:51 PM0.0020 mg/L 10.065

Cadmium 8/28/2018 5:14:51 PM0.0020 mg/L 1ND

Chromium 8/28/2018 5:14:51 PM0.0060 mg/L 1ND

Cobalt 8/28/2018 5:14:51 PM0.0060 mg/L 1ND

Iron 8/28/2018 5:14:51 PM0.020 mg/L 10.20

Manganese 8/28/2018 5:14:51 PM0.0020 mg/L 10.043

Molybdenum 8/28/2018 5:14:51 PM0.0080 mg/L 1ND

Nickel 8/28/2018 5:14:51 PM0.010 mg/L 1ND

Silver 8/28/2018 5:14:51 PM0.0050 mg/L 1ND

Zinc 8/28/2018 5:14:51 PM0.010 mg/L 10.13

EPA 200.8: METALS Analyst: ELS

Arsenic 8/24/2018 7:58:25 AM0.0050 mg/L 5ND

Copper 8/24/2018 7:58:25 AM0.0050 mg/L 50.034

Lead 8/24/2018 7:58:25 AM0.0025 mg/L 5ND

Selenium 8/24/2018 7:58:25 AM0.0050 mg/L 5ND

Uranium 8/28/2018 8:32:02 AM0.0025 mg/L 5ND

EPA METHOD 245.1: MERCURY Analyst: rde

Mercury 9/5/2018 5:32:52 PM0.00020 mg/L 1ND

SM5210B: BOD Analyst: SMS

Biochemical Oxygen Demand 8/27/2018 1:48:00 PM2.0 mg/L 11100

SM 4500 NORG C: TKN Analyst: CJS

Nitrogen, Kjeldahl, Total D 8/24/2018 2:16:00 PM2.0 mg/L 190

SM 2540D: TSS Analyst: KS

Suspended Solids D 8/22/2018 1:08:00 PM8.0 mg/L 1540

Qualifiers:   
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Refer to the QC Summary report and sample login checklist for flagged QC data and preservation information.

* Value exceeds Maximum Contaminant Level. B Analyte detected in the associated Method Blank
D Sample Diluted Due to Matrix E Value above quantitation range
H Holding times for preparation or analysis exceeded J Analyte detected below quantitation limits

ND Not Detected at the Reporting Limit P Sample pH Not In Range
PQL Practical Quanitative Limit RL Reporting Detection Limit

S % Recovery outside of range due to dilution or matrix W Sample container temperature is out of limit as specified 

















Project: Santa Fe County WRF Sampling
Client: Santa Fe County

14-Sep-18

QC SUMMARY REPORT 1808B81WO#:
Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory, Inc.

Sample ID MB-39911

Batch ID: 39911

Analysis Date: 8/28/2018Prep Date: 8/21/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: PBW RunNo: 53753

SeqNo: 1774143

MBLKSampType: TestCode: EPA Method 200.7: Metals

Aluminum 0.020ND

Barium 0.0020ND

Cadmium 0.0020ND

Chromium 0.0060ND

Cobalt 0.0060ND

Iron 0.020ND

Manganese 0.0020ND

Molybdenum 0.0080ND

Nickel 0.010ND

Silver 0.0050ND

Zinc 0.010ND

Sample ID LLLCS-39911

Batch ID: 39911

Analysis Date: 8/28/2018Prep Date: 8/21/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: BatchQC RunNo: 53753

SeqNo: 1774144

LCSLLSampType: TestCode: EPA Method 200.7: Metals

Aluminum 0.01000 108 50 1500.020 0ND

Barium 0.002000 88.0 50 1500.0020 0ND

Cadmium 0.002000 106 50 1500.0020 00.0021

Chromium 0.006000 106 50 1500.0060 00.0063

Cobalt 0.006000 103 50 1500.0060 00.0062

Iron 0.02000 79.9 50 1500.020 0ND

Manganese 0.002000 101 50 1500.0020 00.0020

Molybdenum 0.008000 109 50 1500.0080 00.0087

Nickel 0.005000 52.6 50 1500.010 0ND

Silver 0.005000 94.0 50 1500.0050 0ND

Zinc 0.005000 128 50 1500.010 0ND

Sample ID LCS-39911

Batch ID: 39911

Analysis Date: 8/28/2018Prep Date: 8/21/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: LCSW RunNo: 53753

SeqNo: 1774145

LCSSampType: TestCode: EPA Method 200.7: Metals

Aluminum 0.5000 103 85 1150.020 00.52

Barium 0.5000 98.0 85 1150.0020 00.49

Cadmium 0.5000 99.4 85 1150.0020 00.50

Chromium 0.5000 97.3 85 1150.0060 00.49

Cobalt 0.5000 96.2 85 1150.0060 00.48

Iron 0.5000 103 85 1150.020 00.51

Qualifiers:   
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* Value exceeds Maximum Contaminant Level. B Analyte detected in the associated Method Blank
D Sample Diluted Due to Matrix E Value above quantitation range
H Holding times for preparation or analysis exceeded J Analyte detected below quantitation limits

ND Not Detected at the Reporting Limit P Sample pH Not In Range
PQL Practical Quanitative Limit RL Reporting Detection Limit

S % Recovery outside of range due to dilution or matrix W Sample container temperature is out of limit as specified 



Project: Santa Fe County WRF Sampling
Client: Santa Fe County

14-Sep-18

QC SUMMARY REPORT 1808B81WO#:
Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory, Inc.

Sample ID LCS-39911

Batch ID: 39911

Analysis Date: 8/28/2018Prep Date: 8/21/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: LCSW RunNo: 53753

SeqNo: 1774145

LCSSampType: TestCode: EPA Method 200.7: Metals

Manganese 0.5000 97.4 85 1150.0020 00.49

Molybdenum 0.5000 98.2 85 1150.0080 00.49

Nickel 0.5000 97.3 85 1150.010 00.49

Silver 0.1000 96.1 85 1150.0050 00.096

Zinc 0.5000 98.4 85 1150.010 00.49

Qualifiers:   
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* Value exceeds Maximum Contaminant Level. B Analyte detected in the associated Method Blank
D Sample Diluted Due to Matrix E Value above quantitation range
H Holding times for preparation or analysis exceeded J Analyte detected below quantitation limits

ND Not Detected at the Reporting Limit P Sample pH Not In Range
PQL Practical Quanitative Limit RL Reporting Detection Limit

S % Recovery outside of range due to dilution or matrix W Sample container temperature is out of limit as specified 



Project: Santa Fe County WRF Sampling
Client: Santa Fe County

14-Sep-18

QC SUMMARY REPORT 1808B81WO#:
Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory, Inc.

Sample ID MB-39911

Batch ID: 39911

Analysis Date: 8/24/2018Prep Date: 8/21/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: PBW RunNo: 53684

SeqNo: 1770803

MBLKSampType: TestCode: EPA 200.8: Metals

Arsenic 0.0010ND

Copper 0.0010ND

Lead 0.00050ND

Selenium 0.0010ND

Uranium 0.00050ND

Sample ID MSLLLCS-39911

Batch ID: 39911

Analysis Date: 8/24/2018Prep Date: 8/21/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: BatchQC RunNo: 53684

SeqNo: 1770804

LCSLLSampType: TestCode: EPA 200.8: Metals

Arsenic 0.001000 100 50 1500.0010 00.0010

Copper 0.001000 106 50 1500.0010 00.0011

Lead 0.0005000 101 50 1500.00050 00.00050

Selenium 0.001000 93.7 50 1500.0010 0ND

Uranium 0.0005000 98.2 50 1500.00050 0ND

Sample ID MSLCS-39911

Batch ID: 39911

Analysis Date: 8/24/2018Prep Date: 8/21/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: LCSW RunNo: 53684

SeqNo: 1770805

LCSSampType: TestCode: EPA 200.8: Metals

Arsenic 0.02500 99.4 85 1150.0010 00.025

Copper 0.02500 103 85 1150.0010 00.026

Lead 0.01250 99.8 85 1150.00050 00.012

Selenium 0.02500 98.7 85 1150.0010 00.025

Uranium 0.01250 99.6 85 1150.00050 00.012

Qualifiers:   
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* Value exceeds Maximum Contaminant Level. B Analyte detected in the associated Method Blank
D Sample Diluted Due to Matrix E Value above quantitation range
H Holding times for preparation or analysis exceeded J Analyte detected below quantitation limits

ND Not Detected at the Reporting Limit P Sample pH Not In Range
PQL Practical Quanitative Limit RL Reporting Detection Limit

S % Recovery outside of range due to dilution or matrix W Sample container temperature is out of limit as specified 



Project: Santa Fe County WRF Sampling
Client: Santa Fe County

14-Sep-18

QC SUMMARY REPORT 1808B81WO#:
Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory, Inc.

Sample ID MB-40151

Batch ID: 40151

Analysis Date: 9/5/2018Prep Date: 9/5/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: PBW RunNo: 53933

SeqNo: 1780043

MBLKSampType: TestCode: EPA Method 245.1: Mercury

Mercury 0.00020ND

Sample ID LCS-40151

Batch ID: 40151

Analysis Date: 9/5/2018Prep Date: 9/5/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: LCSW RunNo: 53933

SeqNo: 1780044

LCSSampType: TestCode: EPA Method 245.1: Mercury

Mercury 0.005000 96.9 80 1200.00020 00.0048

Qualifiers:   
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* Value exceeds Maximum Contaminant Level. B Analyte detected in the associated Method Blank
D Sample Diluted Due to Matrix E Value above quantitation range
H Holding times for preparation or analysis exceeded J Analyte detected below quantitation limits

ND Not Detected at the Reporting Limit P Sample pH Not In Range
PQL Practical Quanitative Limit RL Reporting Detection Limit

S % Recovery outside of range due to dilution or matrix W Sample container temperature is out of limit as specified 



Project: Santa Fe County WRF Sampling
Client: Santa Fe County

14-Sep-18

QC SUMMARY REPORT 1808B81WO#:
Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory, Inc.

Sample ID MB

Batch ID: R53555

Analysis Date: 8/20/2018Prep Date:

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: PBW RunNo: 53555

SeqNo: 1766371

mblkSampType: TestCode: EPA Method 300.0: Anions

Fluoride 0.10ND

Nitrogen, Nitrate (As N) 0.10ND

Sulfate 0.50ND

Sample ID LCS

Batch ID: R53555

Analysis Date: 8/20/2018Prep Date:

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: LCSW RunNo: 53555

SeqNo: 1766372

lcsSampType: TestCode: EPA Method 300.0: Anions

Fluoride 0.5000 94.3 90 1100.10 00.47

Nitrogen, Nitrate (As N) 2.500 96.4 90 1100.10 02.4

Sulfate 10.00 92.0 90 1100.50 09.2

Qualifiers:   
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* Value exceeds Maximum Contaminant Level. B Analyte detected in the associated Method Blank
D Sample Diluted Due to Matrix E Value above quantitation range
H Holding times for preparation or analysis exceeded J Analyte detected below quantitation limits

ND Not Detected at the Reporting Limit P Sample pH Not In Range
PQL Practical Quanitative Limit RL Reporting Detection Limit

S % Recovery outside of range due to dilution or matrix W Sample container temperature is out of limit as specified 



Project: Santa Fe County WRF Sampling
Client: Santa Fe County

14-Sep-18

QC SUMMARY REPORT 1808B81WO#:
Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory, Inc.

Sample ID MB-39923

Batch ID: 39923

Analysis Date: 8/27/2018Prep Date: 8/22/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: PBW RunNo: 53738

SeqNo: 1772892

MBLKSampType: TestCode: SM5210B: BOD

Biochemical Oxygen Demand 2.0ND

Sample ID MB--39923

Batch ID: 39923

Analysis Date: 8/27/2018Prep Date: 8/22/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: PBW RunNo: 53738

SeqNo: 1772893

MBLKSampType: TestCode: SM5210B: BOD

Biochemical Oxygen Demand 2.0ND

Sample ID LCS-39923

Batch ID: 39923

Analysis Date: 8/27/2018Prep Date: 8/22/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: LCSW RunNo: 53738

SeqNo: 1772894

LCSSampType: TestCode: SM5210B: BOD

Biochemical Oxygen Demand 198.0 76.0 84.6 115.4 S2.0 0150

Sample ID 1808B81-001ADUP

Batch ID: 39923

Analysis Date: 8/27/2018Prep Date: 8/22/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: PNM Quill Influent RunNo: 53738

SeqNo: 1772896

DUPSampType: TestCode: SM5210B: BOD

Biochemical Oxygen Demand 20 R2.0 25.5140

Qualifiers:   
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* Value exceeds Maximum Contaminant Level. B Analyte detected in the associated Method Blank
D Sample Diluted Due to Matrix E Value above quantitation range
H Holding times for preparation or analysis exceeded J Analyte detected below quantitation limits

ND Not Detected at the Reporting Limit P Sample pH Not In Range
PQL Practical Quanitative Limit RL Reporting Detection Limit

S % Recovery outside of range due to dilution or matrix W Sample container temperature is out of limit as specified 



Project: Santa Fe County WRF Sampling
Client: Santa Fe County

14-Sep-18

QC SUMMARY REPORT 1808B81WO#:
Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory, Inc.

Sample ID MB-39953

Batch ID: 39953

Analysis Date: 8/24/2018Prep Date: 8/23/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: PBW RunNo: 53698

SeqNo: 1771280

MBLKSampType: TestCode: SM 4500 Norg C: TKN

Nitrogen, Kjeldahl, Total 1.0ND

Sample ID LCS-39953

Batch ID: 39953

Analysis Date: 8/24/2018Prep Date: 8/23/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: LCSW RunNo: 53698

SeqNo: 1771281

LCSSampType: TestCode: SM 4500 Norg C: TKN

Nitrogen, Kjeldahl, Total 10.00 102 80 1201.0 010

Qualifiers:   
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* Value exceeds Maximum Contaminant Level. B Analyte detected in the associated Method Blank
D Sample Diluted Due to Matrix E Value above quantitation range
H Holding times for preparation or analysis exceeded J Analyte detected below quantitation limits

ND Not Detected at the Reporting Limit P Sample pH Not In Range
PQL Practical Quanitative Limit RL Reporting Detection Limit

S % Recovery outside of range due to dilution or matrix W Sample container temperature is out of limit as specified 



Project: Santa Fe County WRF Sampling
Client: Santa Fe County

14-Sep-18

QC SUMMARY REPORT 1808B81WO#:
Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory, Inc.

Sample ID MB-39906

Batch ID: 39906

Analysis Date: 8/22/2018Prep Date: 8/21/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: PBW RunNo: 53621

SeqNo: 1768607

MBLKSampType: TestCode: SM 2540D: TSS

Suspended Solids 4.0ND

Sample ID LCS-39906

Batch ID: 39906

Analysis Date: 8/22/2018Prep Date: 8/21/2018

Analyte Result SPK value SPK Ref Val %REC %RPDLowLimit HighLimit RPDLimit Qual

Units: mg/L

PQL

Client ID: LCSW RunNo: 53621

SeqNo: 1768608

LCSSampType: TestCode: SM 2540D: TSS

Suspended Solids 95.10 114 81.07 115.674.0 0110

Qualifiers:   
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* Value exceeds Maximum Contaminant Level. B Analyte detected in the associated Method Blank
D Sample Diluted Due to Matrix E Value above quantitation range
H Holding times for preparation or analysis exceeded J Analyte detected below quantitation limits

ND Not Detected at the Reporting Limit P Sample pH Not In Range
PQL Practical Quanitative Limit RL Reporting Detection Limit

S % Recovery outside of range due to dilution or matrix W Sample container temperature is out of limit as specified 
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